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RFU SHORT JUDGMENT FORM £2 fye

Bath Rugby Vv Gloucester RFC
Club’s Level 1 Competition Gallagher Premiership
Date of Match 19/02/2021 Match Venue Recreation Ground

Particulars of Offence

IFEVEIERNEI Il R APAVA-RUSKIN Date of Birth 12/10/1992

Forename(s) Val Admitted [1|| Not Admitted
Club name Gloucester RFC 1707412

1V CHOL I Striking with the arm/elbow.
Law 9 Offence 9.12

Sanction 3 week suspension.

Hearing Details

Hearing Date 23/02/21 Hearing venue Remote

GBI CWENCREE Jeremy Summers Panel Member1  IREThIW@XeI&S

IS M Chris Skaife IZVOREC B A Rebecca Morgan
Appearance Player S ‘D No ‘ Appearance Club |88 D‘ No ‘

Player’s Representative(s): Other attendees:

Alex Brown, COO Angus Hetherington, RFU
David Barnes, RFU.

List of documents/materials provided to player in advance of hearing:

Charge Sheet

Red Card Report

RFU Regulation 19, Appendix 2

Match footage

Medical report dated 22 February 2021

On behalf of the Player the Panel also considered:

Written submissions dated 22 February 2021

Copy text Player to B4 22/02/21

Character reference from Mark Hewitt, Academy Manager Dragons Rugby dated 22 February
2021
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Summary of Essential Elements of Citing/Referee/s Report/Footage

The Referee (Wayne Barnes) recorded the detail of the incident as follows:

"In the 9th minute of the match, the TMO suggested that | looked at the big screen to determine
whether foul play had occurred. Upon looking at the screen, | saw G1 carrying the ball just inside
the Bath half. B4 attempted to tackle him. Prior to coming into contact with the Bath player, G1
had the ball in his left arm. His right arm was away from his body and his right forearm / elbow
came into direct contact with the head with the Bath player. | deemed this was foul play as his
arm was not braced against his body prior to contact. | therefore issued a red card."”

There had been no score at the time of the incident. B4 was removed for a HIA, but subsequently
cleared to return to play.

The match footage was reviewed and found to be consistent with the above narrative. The Player
takes a pass as first receiver from G9 following a breakdown just inside the Bath half. He is
positioned in the middle of the field slightly short of the half way line. He attacks at pace getting
some 3 metres into the Bath half before B4 closes into effect the tackle. B4 is slightly crouched
but effectively close to upright as he braces for the impact. The Player's right forearm is close to
a 90 degree angle extended away from his body. Direct contact is made with force to the right
hand side of B4's face. B4 is knocked to the ground by the impact and appears to be dazed
before immediately getting up to rejoin the defensive line. Play continues down field before the
Referee is alerted to the need to conduct a foul play review.
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Essential Elements of Other Evidence (e.g. medical reports)

A medical update was considered by the Panel and reported as follows:

"Josh [B4] was assessed on field by Bath Medics after attempting a tackle. At the time, without
video review available to us due to technical issues, and although he passed his on-field
assessment, we took a cautious approach and removed him for an HIA as a precaution. Josh
met his baselines and returned to the field where he completed the game without issue.

Josh completed his HIA2 post game and HIA3 on Sunday morning and had returned to
baselines. Subsequently no concussion was recorded. Josh has no ongoing ill-effects and has
returned to the training environment as normal. He will be monitored with the normal diligence for
any deviation from normal.”
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Summary of Player’s Evidence

The Player gave evidence with commendable candour. He accepted without equivocation that he
had gone in "way to high" and had been working on his technique with his coaches since the
incident. He should have led with a locked arm, but for some reason he had extended. He had
known straight away that he had been in the wrong and that his actions had risked causing
serious injury. He had contacted B4 afterwards to apologise and was relieved that no injury had
been sustained.

On behalf of the Player, Mr Brown noted that the offending had been admitted unreservedly. The
Player had been a professional for 9 years without receiving a yellow or red card previously. He

had been cited, but for an incident involving a push to a referee 4 years ago. In his view, the age
and nature of that offence should allow the Player to receive full mitigation credit for this offence.

On behalf of the RFU, Mr Hetherington submitted that the offending should be viewed as a
Mid-Range offence, no aggravating features were present and mitigation was a matter for the
Panel to determine.
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Findings of Fact

1. The Player led upwards with his forearm into the contact with B4.

2. His forearm was extended away from his body and so not bracing for impact.

3. The forearm was lifted to shoulder height at about 90 degress immediately before impact.

4. Contact was made with the top of the Player's arm rather than his elbow, and the offence was
accordinly a strike with the arm, not the elbow.

4. Direct contact was made with the right hand side of B4's face with impact being made with the
chin/cheek area.

5. B4 is knocked to the ground by the impact. He was removed for a HIA, but no material injury
was sustained.
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Breach admitted [] | Proven Not Proven Other Disposal (please state below)

On the Player's admission, and on the basis of the evidence, the Panel found that the Player had
committed an act of foul play in striking with an arm directly to B4's head and that the offending
had warranted the issue of a red card.

(@)
SANGTIONING PROGESS £ Ry

Assessment of intent - Ref 19.11.8

Assessment of Seriousness

PLEASE TICK APPROPRIATE BOX 19.11.8(a) Intentional/deliberate 19.11.8(b) Reckless ]

Reasons for finding as to intent:

This was a dynamic incident to which B4's near upright position had contributed. Whilst the Panel
found that the Player had not deliberately targeted B4's head, his actions were plainly dangerous
and he should have been aware of the risk of foul play arising.

Gravity of player’s actions - Reg 19.11.8(c)

The dangers associated with head injuries are well known, and going into contact in a manner
that clearly risked such injury must be viewed seriously even if the action, as was the case here,
is unintended.
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Nature of actions - Reg 19.11.8(d)

Single strike, with force, to an opponent's head as described above.

Existence of provocation - Reg 19.11.8(e)

None.

Whether player retaliated - Reg 19.11.8(f)

Not relevant to the incident.

Self-defence - Reg 19.11.8(g)

Not relevant to the incident.

Effect on victim - Reg 19.11.8(h)

No injury sustained.

Effect on match - Reg 19.11.8(i)

None, beyond Gloucester being reduced to 14 men for the majority of the match

Vulnerability of victim - Reg 19.11.8(j)

None material to the assessement of the offending.

Level of participation/premeditation - Reg 19.11.8(k)

No premeditation.
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Conduct completed/attempted - Reg 19.11.8(])

Completed.

Other features of player’s conduct - Reg 19.11.8(m)

None.

Assessment of Seriousness Continued

Low-end Mid-range
] o

*If Top End, the JO or Panel should identify, if apropriate, an entry point between the Top End

and the maximum sanction and provide the reasons for selecting this entry point, below.
In making this assessment, the JO/committee should be consider RFU Regulation 19

Reasons for selecting entry point:

The Panel followed the minimum mid-range entry point required for foul play involving contact
with the head. The Panel found no grounds in the offending that necessitated a Top End entry
point assessment. This was a reckless act where no injury resulted.

Additional Relevant Off-Field Aggravating Factors - Reg 19.11.10

Player’s status as an offender of the laws of the game - Reg 19.11.10 (a)

Not relevant.

Need for deterrent to combat a pattern of offending - Reg 19.11.10(b)

None.
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Any other off-field aggravating factor that the disciplinary panel considers relevant and appropriate -

Reg 19.11.10 (c)

None.

Number of additional weeks: O

Relevant Off-Field Mitgating Factors

Acknowledgement of guilt and timing - Player’s disciplinary record/good character -
Reg 19.11.11(a) Reg 19.11.11(b)

FU" and immediate The Player has been playing professional rugby for 9 years. In that period, he
has been subject to a single period of suspension, imposed in April 2017.
Significantly, this did not relate to foul play in relation to an opponent, but the
pushing of a match official for which he was subsequently cited. In those
circumstances, the Panel determined that the the Player should be viewed as
having had a clear record for the purposes of this offending.

Youth and inexperience of player - Reg 19.11.11(c) Conduct prior to and at hearing - Reg 19.11.11(d)

Not relevant. Befitting a player at the elite level.

Remorse and timing of Remorse - Reg 19.11.11(e) Other off-field mitigation - Reg 19.11.11(f)

Genuine and propmt. None.

Number of weeks deducted: 3

Summary of reason for number of weeks deducted:

For the reasons given above, the Player was deemed to have a clear record. He fully accepted
the commission of the offence and his conduct/remorse were also in his favour. The Panel
therefore determined that the Player was entitled to a 50% discount from the entry point by way
of credit for mitigation.
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Games for meaningful sanctions:

The Player will miss the following Gallagher Premiership matches:
Worcester, Saturday 27th February.
Wasps, Saturday 6th March.

Leicester, Sunday 13th March.

Sanction

NOTE: PLAYER ORDERED OFF ARE PROVISIONALLY SUSPENDED PENDING THE HEARING
OF THEIR CASE, SUCH SUSPENSION SHOULD BE TAKEN INTO CONSIDERATION WHEN
SANCTIONING

Total sanction 3 weeks Sending off sufficient

Sanction commences 19/02/21

Sanctions concludes 15/03/21

Free to play 16/03/21
Final date to lodge appeal el¥{oydpk]

Costs (please refer to Reg  Fs{el]
19, Appendix 3 for full
cost details)

N - I o022

NOTE: YOU HAVE THE RIGHT OF APPEAL AGAINST THIS DECISION AS SET OUT
IN REGULATION 19.12 OF THE DISCIPLINARY REGULATIONS. YOUR ATTENTION IS
SPECIFICALLY DRAWN TO THE TIME LIMIT AND DIRECTIONS/REQUIREMENTS RELATING
TO AN APPEAL SET OUT IN REGULATION 19.12.9
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	Hearing venue Panel Member 1 Panel Secretary Appearance Club�: Remote
	Reasons for finding as to intent�: This was a dynamic incident to which B4's near upright position had contributed. Whilst the Panel found that the Player had not deliberately targeted B4's head, his actions were plainly dangerous and he should have been aware of the risk of foul play arising.
	Gravity of players actions  Reg 19118c�: The dangers associated with head injuries are well known, and going into contact in a manner  that clearly risked such injury must be viewed seriously even if the action, as was the case here, is unintended.
	Sending off sufficient: 
	Date�: 24/02/21 
	Match�: Bath Rugby
	Vs�: Gloucester RFC
	Clubs Level�: 1
	Date of Match�: 19/02/2021
	Competition�: Gallagher Premiership
	Match Venue�: Recreation Ground
	Players Surname�: RAPAVA-RUSKIN
	Date of Birth�: 12/10/1992
	Forename(s)�: Val
	Plea Admitted�: Yes
	Plea Not Admitted: Off
	Club name�: Gloucester RFC
	Type of Offence�: Striking with the arm/elbow.
	Law 9 Offence�: 9.12
	Sanction�: 3 week suspension. 
	RFU ID No�: 1707412
	Hearing Date�: 23/02/21
	Panel Member 1�: Jamie Corsi
	Chairmen/SJO�: Jeremy Summers
	Panel Member 2�: Chris Skaife
	Panel Secretary�: Rebecca Morgan
	Appearance Player Yes�: Yes
	Appearance Player No: Off
	Appearance Club Yes�: Yes
	Appearance Club No: Off
	Players Representatives�: Alex Brown, COO
	Other attendees�: Angus Hetherington, RFU
David Barnes, RFU.
	List of documents/materials provided to player in advance of hearingRow1�: Charge Sheet

Red Card Report

RFU Regulation 19, Appendix 2

Match footage

Medical report dated 22 February 2021



On behalf of the Player the Panel also considered:

Written submissions dated 22 February 2021

Copy text Player to B4 22/02/21

Character reference from Mark Hewitt, Academy Manager Dragons Rugby dated 22 February 2021
	Summary of Essential Elements of Citing/Referee/sReport/Footage�: The Referee (Wayne Barnes) recorded the detail of the incident as follows:

"In the 9th minute of the match, the TMO suggested that I looked at the big screen to determine whether foul play had occurred. Upon looking at the screen, I saw G1 carrying the ball just inside the Bath half. B4 attempted to tackle him. Prior to coming into contact with the Bath player, G1 had the ball in his left arm. His right arm was away from his body and his right forearm / elbow came into direct contact with the head with the Bath player. I deemed this was foul play as his arm was not braced against his body prior to contact. I therefore issued a red card."

There had been no score at the time of the incident. B4 was removed for a HIA, but subsequently cleared to return to play.

The match footage was reviewed and found to be consistent with the above narrative. The Player takes a pass as first receiver from G9 following a breakdown just inside the Bath half. He is positioned in the middle of the field slightly short of the half way line. He attacks at pace getting some 3 metres into the Bath half before B4 closes into effect the tackle. B4 is slightly crouched but effectively close to upright as he braces for the impact. The Player's right forearm is close to a 90 degree angle extended away from his body. Direct contact is made with force to the right hand side of B4's face. B4 is knocked to the ground by the impact and appears to be dazed before immediately getting up to rejoin the defensive line. Play continues down field before the Referee is alerted to the need to conduct a foul play review.


	Essential Elements of Other Evidence (e: 
	g: 
	 medical reports)�: A medical update was considered by the Panel and reported as follows:

"Josh [B4] was assessed on field by Bath Medics after attempting a tackle. At the time, without video review available to us due to technical issues, and although he passed his on-field assessment, we took a cautious approach and removed him for an HIA as a precaution. Josh met his baselines and returned to the field where he completed the game without issue.

Josh completed his HIA2 post game and HIA3 on Sunday morning and had returned to baselines. Subsequently no concussion was recorded. Josh has no ongoing ill-effects and has returned to the training environment as normal. He will be monitored with the normal diligence for any deviation from normal."



	Summary of Players Evidence�: The Player gave evidence with commendable candour. He accepted without equivocation that he had gone in "way to high" and had been working on his technique with his coaches since the incident. He should have led with a locked arm, but for some reason he had extended. He had known straight away that he had been in the wrong and that his actions had risked causing serious injury. He had contacted B4 afterwards to apologise and was relieved that no injury had been sustained.



On behalf of the Player, Mr Brown noted that the offending had been admitted unreservedly. The Player had been a professional for 9 years without receiving a yellow or red card previously. He had been cited, but for an incident involving a push to a referee 4 years ago. In his view, the age and nature of that offence should allow the Player to receive full mitigation credit for this offence.



On behalf of the RFU, Mr Hetherington submitted that the offending should be viewed as a Mid-Range offence, no aggravating features were present and mitigation was a matter for the Panel to determine.
	Findings of Fact�: 1. The Player led upwards with his forearm into the contact with B4.

2. His forearm was extended away from his body and so not bracing for impact.

3. The forearm was lifted to shoulder height at about 90 degress immediately before impact.

4. Contact was made with the top of the Player's arm rather than his elbow, and the offence was accordinly a strike with the arm, not the elbow.

4. Direct contact was made with the right hand side of B4's face with impact being made with the chin/cheek area.

5. B4 is knocked to the ground by the impact. He was removed for a HIA, but no material injury was sustained.
	Breach Admitted�: Yes
	Proven: Off
	Not Proven: Off
	Other Disposal: Off
	Decision�: On the Player's admission, and on the basis of the evidence, the Panel found that the Player had committed an act of foul play in striking with an arm directly to B4's head and that the offending had warranted the issue of a red card.
	Intentional/deliberate: Off
	Reckless�: Yes
	Nature of actions  Reg 19118d�: Single strike, with force, to an opponent's head as described above.
	Existence of provocation  Reg 19118e�: None.
	Whether player retaliated  Reg 19118f�: Not relevant to the incident.
	Selfdefence  Reg 19118g�: Not relevant to the incident.
	Effect on victim  Reg 19118h�: No injury sustained.
	Effect on match  Reg 19118i�: None, beyond Gloucester being reduced to 14 men for the majority of the match
	Vulnerability of victim  Reg 19118j�: None material to the assessement of the offending.
	Level of participationpremeditation  Reg 19118k�: No premeditation.
	Conduct completedattempted  Reg 19118l�: Completed. 
	Other features of players conduct  Reg 19118m�: None.
	Low End Entry Point: Off
	Low-end Weeks: 
	Mid-Range Entry Point�: Yes
	Mid-range Weeks�: 6
	Top End Entry Point: Off
	Top-End Weeks: 
	Reasons for selecting entry point�: The Panel followed the minimum mid-range entry point required for foul play involving contact with the head. The Panel found no grounds in the offending that necessitated a Top End entry point assessment. This was a reckless act where no injury resulted.
	Players status as an offender of the laws of the game�: Not relevant.
	Need for deterrent to combat a pattern of offending�: None. 
	Any other off-field aggravating factor that the disciplinary panel considers relevant and appropriate�: None.
	Acknowledgement of guilt and timing�: Full and immediate
	Players disciplinary record/good character�: The Player has been playing professional rugby for 9 years. In that period, he has been subject to a single period of suspension, imposed in April 2017. Significantly, this did not relate to foul play in relation to an opponent, but the pushing of a match official for which he was subsequently cited. In those circumstances, the Panel determined that the the Player should be viewed as having had a clear record for the purposes of this offending.
	Youth and inexperience of player�: Not relevant.
	Conduct prior to and at hearing�: Befitting a player at the elite level.
	Remorse and timing of Remorse�: Genuine and propmt.
	Other offfield mitigation�: None.
	Summary of reason for number of weeks deducted�: For the reasons given above, the Player was deemed to have a clear record. He fully accepted the commission of the offence and his conduct/remorse were also in his favour. The Panel therefore determined that the Player was entitled to a 50% discount from the entry point by way of credit for mitigation.
	Games for meaningful sanctions�: The Player will miss the following Gallagher Premiership matches:



Worcester, Saturday 27th February.



Wasps, Saturday 6th March.



Leicester, Sunday 13th March.




	Total sanction�: 3 weeks
	Sanction commences�: 19/02/21
	Sanction concludes�: 15/03/21
	Free to Play�: 16/03/21
	Final date to lodge appeal�: 25/02/21
	Costs�: £500
	Number of Additional Weeks�: 0
	Number of Weeks Deducted�: 3
	Signature�: Jeremy Summers


